
BRITISH POSSESSIONS IN NORTH 

AMERIOA, 

Tue progress of his Royal Highness the 

Prince of Wales in British North America 

having directed public attention in an €s- 

pecial manner to our possessions on the new 

continent, we have been induced to give the 
accompanying Map, in which the route of his 

Royal Highness may be clearly traced, 

CANADA, 

This extensive tract of country, and most 

important colony of England, extends in a 

triangular form from Gaspé Point, in the 

Gulf of St. Lawrence, long. 64deg, 10 min.W., 

to the shores of Lake Superior, about long. 

90 deg. W., between lat. 42 deg. and 50 deg. 

N,, bounded north by the Hudson Bay ter- 

ritory, south by Lakes Huron, Erie, Ontario, 

the St. Lawrence, New Brunswick, and the 
Btates of New York, Vermont, New Hamp- 

shire, and Maine ; and west by Lake Superior. 

Length, 1500 miles; breadth, 200 to 400 miles, 

In 1858 its population was about 2,500,000, 

The country, formerly divided by the Ottowa 

River into the provinces of ae and Lower 

Canad, was wnited in 1841, though differing 

in laws, manners, and customs. For some 

yurposes the old divisions are still retained, 

‘he upper province, or Canada West, has a 

level surface, except in the west, where a 

ridge of undulating heights, stretching 

from south-weet to north-east, forms the 

water parting between Lakes Huron and 

Superior, The upper peyrines is_watered 

by streams flowing south to Lakes Erie and 

Ontario; the principal rivera are the Thames 

and the Ouse, which enters Lake Erie, The 

Niagara separates the peninsular portion of 

south-west Canada from the State of New 

York on the east. Lower Canada, or Canada 

Kast, i icterised by picturesque scenery ; 

it is traversed from north-east to south-west 

by the Green mountains on the south of the 

Bt. Lawrence, the Mealy mountains, which 

are always snowelad, and the Wotchish 

mountains, between Hudson Bay and the 

Gulf of St. Lawrence. Its principal rivers 

are the St. Lawrence, forming, in part of its 

course, the boundary between Canada and 

the State of New York, and its tributaries, 

the principal of which are on the north, the 

Ottawa, formerly the boundary between the 

upper and lower provinces, _ which flows 

south-east and joins the main stream at 

Montreal, the St. Maurice or Three Rivers, 

which flows south and joins it seventy miles 

worst of Quebec, and the Saguenay from 

Lake St. John. On the south side of the 

St. Lawrence the chief affluents are the 

Richelieu, St. Francia, and Chaudiere, flowing 

northwards, Besides the great Lakes Superior, 

Fluron, Erie, and Ontario, the surface of the 

country is covered with sheets of water con- 

nected by numberless small streams. Its 

climate is excessive, the temperature ranging 

from 102 deg. to 36 deg. Fahr., but the 

dryness of the air, and the absence of 

hivh winds, greatly mitigate the cold of 

winter, and render the climate salubrious. 

The educational establishments are rapidly 

advancing in number and usefulness, the 

Government educational grants for Lower 

Canada being £38,888, and Upper Canada 

£28,845, In 1851 the population, according 
to religion, was— 

F. Canada. W. Canada. 

Church of Rngland He 45,402 223,190 

Church of Scotland ee 4,047 57 542 
Church of Rome.. .. 746,866 167,695 

Free Presbyterians + 267 65,807 

Other Presbyterians ., 29,221 80,799 
Wesleyan Methodists .. 5,799 96,640 

Episcopal Methodists .. ¢ 43,884 

New Connection “s 8,442 7,547 

Other Methodists +e) (11,935 59,585 

Oongregationalists wi 8,927 7,747 

Baptiste .. i‘ t 4,495 45,353 
Lutherans e we 18 12,089 

Quakers es te 163 7,460 
Jows “ +e et 348 103 

Others not classed = 22,556 64,054 

890,261 952,004 

Canada is peculiarly inviting as a field for 
emigrants, the soil being fertile and easily 
cultivated, with facilities for commerce on 

the rivers and lakes almost unbounded. 
Numerous railways in progress or completed, 
excellent roads and canals, open up the in- 
terior, Land is easily attainable, Crown 
lands in Lower Canada can be purchased at 
from Is, to 4s, per acre, according to situa- 
tion, the purchase-money being payable in 
five yearly instalments from the date of 
urchase, In Upper Canada the cost of 
and is 7s, 6d, per acre, the purchase-money 
being payable in ten yearly instalments. 
Lavhoifencal labourers are in demand, 
and wages are high, This country was 
discovered in 1499 by J, and 8, Cabot, 
and acqitired by the British between 
1759 and 1768, In 1774, by an Act. of the 
British Parliament, a Legislative Council of 
twenty-three members was appointed to assist 
the Governor. In 1791 two Legislative Cham- 
bers were constituted ; and after several years 
ef much discontent in the colonies, and at 
last an open rebellion in 1837-8, a bill was 
passed in 1889 to reunite the two provinces 
under the administration of a Govermor- 
General, a Legislative Council of not less than 
twenty-two elected by the Crown, and a 
Legislative Assembly of forty-two members 
from each provinee elected by the people, the 
electoral qualification being the possession of 
a 40s, freehold, Lower Canada is subdivided 
into the four districts of Quebec, Montreal, 
Three Rivers, and Gaspé, each of which has 
its judges, sheriffs, &, The districts are 
subdivided into forty counties, and upwards 
of 200 seiynories and fiefs, and 160 town- 
ships, The seignories are old French divisions 
and mostly inhabited by a population of 
French desoont. Tn 1793 Canada was made 
an Engi opric. There are now Bisheps 
of Quel M eal, and Toronto, besides 
Roma Bishops, and Protestant 

diasen ti: of all demominations. 
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NEW BRUNSWICK, 
This (British colonial ‘territory in North 

America lies between lat, 45 deg. ‘and 48 deg, 
N,, long. 63 deg, 18 min. and 67 deg. 30 min. W., 
having west Maine and Lower Canada, north 
Chaleur Bay, east the Gulf of St. Lawrence 
and Northumberland Inlet, and south the 
Bay of Fundy, connected at its south-east 
corner with Nova Scotia by an isthmus 
fourteen miles across. Its estimated area is 
27,700 square miles, and its population in 
1851 was 123,809, Its principal rivers are 
the St. John, Ristigouche, and Miramichi. 
Of the soil, which is fertile, only a small 
portion is cleared, the rest is mostly covered 
with dense forests, and the exportation of 
timber has been hitherto the principal source 
of wealth. Potatoes are the chief article of 
culture. Other crops are wheat, maize, oats, 
and barley. The rearing of live stock is in- 
creasing. Its fisheries are highly important, 
and shipbuilding is actively carvied on at 
St. John. Manganese and iron are abundant. 
Its government is vested in a Governor, a 
Council, and House of Assembly of twenty- 
six members, which meets at Fredericton, 
the capital. Besides the armed force main- 
tained by the British Government, a native 
militia of 20,000 is kept up. In education, 
this is in advance of most other British 
colonies, having King's College at Frederic- 
ton, seven grammar-schools, and in 1846 
509 parochial schools, In 1858 a railway, 
sixty-five miles in length, between St. 
Andrews and Woodstock, was opened. Also 
the railway from St. John to Shediac, 100 
miles long, was opened in 1859, Public 
revenue (1852) £138,220, The colony is 
divided into fourteen counties. Its principal 
towns are St. John, Fredericton, and St. 
Andrews. It was ceded to Great Britain 
with Canada in 1763, 
o NOVA "SCOTTA, 

& peninsula of North America, forming a 
British colonial territory, lies between Tat, 
43 deg. 35 min, and 45 deg. 40 min, N,, 
long. 60 deg. 35 min. and 60 deg. 10 min, 
W. It is connected north-west with New 
Brunswick by an isthmus fourteen miles 
across, and separated on the north from 
Prince Edward Island by Northumberland 
Inlet, and by a narrow strait from Cape 
Breton on the north-east, having on other 
sides the Atlantic and the Bay of Fundy. 
Its estimated area is 17,846 square miles, and 
its population in 1851 was 276,177, Its 
surface is greatly diversified, and well 
watered, but nowhere more than 700 feet 
above the sea, Coal abounds in its western 
part. Its rivers are numerous, and Lake 

sssignol, in the south, is thirty miles in 
length. The shores are irregular, abrupt, 
and present numerous harbours, with 
deep water close to hand, Its prin- 
cipal crops are wheat, barley, rye, oats, 
potatoes, turnips, and maple sugar, In 
1851 there were 567 churches and 1096 
schools, attended by 31,354 pupils, It has 
railway communication with Halifax and 
other places. The government is vested in a 
Lieutenant-Governor, a Council of twelve 
members, and a Legislative Assembly, elected 
by 40s, freeholders, two members being re- 
turned by each of the ten counties, and the 
rest by the towns, the principal of which are 
Halifax, the capital and chief seat of com- 
merce, Annapolis, Liverpool, Pictou, and 
‘Windsor, The colony has a High Court of 
Chancery, and forms, with Cape Breton, a 
bishop's see. Nova Scotia was discovered by 
Cabot in 1497, subsequently settled by the 
French, who named it Acadia, and, after 
many vicissitudes, finally ceded to the British 
in 1758, 

CAPE BRETON, 

an insular colony of British North America, 
is situated at the eastern extremity ‘of 
Nova Scotia. Its extreme length from 
north to south is 100 miles, and its ex- 
treme breadth from east to west eighty- 
five miles. The population is about 85,000, 
It is irregularly shaped, and indented with 
bays almost intersected by an arm of the sea 
called the Bras d’Or, The land to the north 
has an elevation of 1800 feet. There are 
fresh-water lakes and rivers, but not navi- 
gable, and salt springs on the coast. The 
climate is varied, Vegetation is rapid, 
Maize and other grains are raised; but the 
corn produced is insufficient for home con- 
sumption. The principal exports are pine 
oak, birch, and ahs timber to Great 
Britain ; fish and coal to the United States 
and West Indies, The population is mostly 
of French, Scotch, or Irish descent, This 
island forms a colony under the government 
of Nova Scotia, and sends two members to 
its House of Assembly. Its principal towns 
are Sydney, the capital, Arichat, and Port 
Hood. Cape Breton was first colonised b 
the French in 1712, and taken by the British 
in 1758, 

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND, 
another of the British colonies of North 
America, is in the Gulf of St. Lawrence 
separated south and west from Nova Beotia 
and New Brunswick by Northumberland 
Strait. . Its area is 2134 square miles, The 
island is entirely composed of carboniferous 
sandstone, and coal is abundant, The 
climate is milder than in the surrounding 
British colonies, and the soil is fertile. Most 
of the grains and vegetables raised in 
England come to perfection in this colon 
timber is plentiful, and the pastures are or a 
superior quality. The fisheries and ship- 
building are important. Its trade is prin- 
——s with Great Britain, Treland, and the 

jacent colonies, with which its agricultural 
produce, timber, deals, shipping, and fish, are 
exchanged for colonial and manufactured proe 
ducts. The Government is vested in a 
Lieutenant-Governor, a Council of nine mem« 
bers, and a House of Assembly of eighteen 
members, elected by the inhabitants, ‘Char- 
lottetown is the capital, 
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OBITUARY OF EMINENT PERSONS, 

THE GRAND DUKE OF MECKLENBURG-STRELITZ. 
His Serene Highness George Frederick Charles Joseph, Grand Duke of 

feckienburg-Strelitz, was the son of the Grand Duke Charles, and grand- 
nephew of Queen Charlotte, consort of George IIL. He was born on the 12th 
of August, 1779, and married, on the 12th of Angust, 1517, her Serene Highness 
Maria Wilhelmina Frederica, danghter of the late Vredericl., Landgrave of 
Hose-Cassel, and had isue Prince Vrederick, lis saccessor, Duke George, 
who married Catherine, daughter of the late Grand Dake Michael of Russia, 
end Caroline, married to, but since separated from, the present King of 
Denmark. The Grand Duke of Mecklenburg-Strelitz succeeded to his sovereignty 
on the death of bis father, the Grand Duke Charles, on the 6th of November, 
1216, He bimeelf diel on the 6th Ingt., aud is succeeded by his elder son, 
Frelorick \\ iiliam Charles George Ernest Adolphs Gustavus, naw Grand Duke 
of Mecklenbary-Strelitz, who was born on the 17th of October, 1819, and is 
A Lientenant-General in the Hanoverian service, Proprietor of the 7th Regiment 
of Manoverian Infantry, « General of Prussian cavalry, and a G.C.B. He 

marriel, on the 28th of June, 1815, her Royal Highness the Princess Augusta 
Caroline Charlotte Blizeheth Maria Sophia Loniaa, eldest daughter of the late, 
and sister of the present, Duke of Cambridge, and has an only son, Prince 
George Adolphus Frederick Angustus Victor Ernest Adalbert Crostavus 
William Wellingtum, Hereditary Grand Duke, born 6n the 22nd of July, 1848. 

LADY RIVERS, 
The hight Hon, Prances, Dowager Baroness Rivers, was tha only daughter 

of Lieutenant-Colonel Fran- 
cis Hale Richy, of Mistley 
Hall, Kesex, by nis wife, 
Frances, daugiiter of Sir 
Thomas Tumbold, Bart., 
M.P., Governor of Madras. 
ifer Ladyship was married 
on the %th of February, 
1508, to Horace Wliliam 
Pitt Rivers (then Beck- 
ford), third Baron Rivers, 
of Budely Castle, inthe 
county of Gloucester, by 
whem (who was acciden- 
tally drowned in the Ser- 
pentine on the 23rd of 
January, 1831) she had two 
sons George, present Lord 

Rivers, and Lieutenant-Colonel the fon. Horace Pitt; and two daughters— 
Fanny, who was married to frederick William Cox, Msq.,and died in 1836; and 
Flarrict Wizabeth, who was Maid of Honour to the Queen, and is now wife of 
Charles Dashwood Bruce, Keq., nephew of Thomas, seventh Harl of Elgin, The 
Dowager Lady Rivers died on the 6th inst, 

eee 

LADY ADELA [BBITSON. 
Lady ‘lela Corsanda Maria [bbetson, whose Jamented death oceurred on 

the 419 inst., at Osterley Park, her mother’s (the Conntess Dowager of Jersey's) 
seat, Urentiond, Middlesex, was the youngest daughter of George Child, fifth 
Earl of Jersey, by his wife, Sarah Sophia, daughter and sole heiress of Robert 
Onild, Keq., and now Countess Dowager of Jersey, and was sister of George, 
aixth Karl of Jersey, and of the late Princess Ksterhazy and the late Lady 
Ciementina Villiers, and aunt of Victor Albert, seventh and present Karl of 
Jermey. Lady Adela was born on the 25th of March, 1828 ; and was married, on 
the 17th of November, 1545, to Major Gharies Parke [bbetson, then of the 11th 
Hussara, and since Brigade Major at Devonport. Lady Adela was the last 
survivor of those three daughters of the Karl and Countess of Jersey whose 
beanty and other qualifications had won them so much popularity and esteem. 

SIR HENRY G. WARD, G.C.M.G. 

His Hixeelloney Sir Henry George Ward, Governor of Madras, was the only 
aon of the late well-known novelist, the author of “Tremaine” and “ De 
Vere,” ftobert Plumer Ward, Esq,, of Gilston Park, Herts, by his first wife, 
Catherine Julin, danghter of C, T. Malling, Msy., of West Herrington, 
Durham, and sieter of Admiral Malling and of the late Countess Dowager of 
Mulgrave, and was the great-grandson of the gallant John Ward who was 
with Admiral Rook and the Prince of Hesse at the taking of Gibraltar, and 
died in the captured fortress, Sir Henry Ward commenced his distinguished 
career in the diplomatic service. He was Attaché at Stockholm in 1816; 
ab tie Hague in ISIS; and ab Madrid in 1819. Tle went as Minister to Mexico 
in 1525, and remained there till May, 1827, We was M.P. for St. 
Albans from 1858 to 1837, and for Sheffield from 1887 till May, 
42. Tie waa Secretary fo the Admiralty from Jtly, 1846, to 
May, 1549, In 1849 he established, as its proprietor, the Weekly 
Chroniele; and he was knighted in the same year, on being appointed Lord 
High Commissioner of the Tonian Isles, and, as usual on such occasions, a 
G.C.M.G. He held the Commissionership till February, 1855, when he was 
mete Governor and Commander-in-Chief of Ceylon, Here he displayed con- 
Adorable ability in his administration, which was very successful, In the 
May of the prevent year he succeeded Sir Charles Prevelyan as Governor of 
Madras, Sir Honry married, in 1824, Emily, second daughter of Sir John | 
Ldward Swinburne, Bart., by whom he leaves a tamily. sir Henry Ward—-to 
the gonetal public regret-—died of cholera, on the 2nd ult., at Madras, 

SCIENTIFIC NEWS, 

THE ROYAL ASTRONOMICAL Socrery’s new volume contains | 
a paper, by Mr. G. B. Airy (the Astronomer Royal), * On the Movement of the 
Solar System in Space.” He objects to the two methods which have been | 
used for determining, from the observed proper motion of stars, the probable 
Cirection of translation of the sun and solar system through the great system 
of stars vis, Sir W, Hersechel’s method, and its recent modification. Mr. 
Airy proposes what he terms “the obvious and simple method of treating | 
the linear movements of the'snn and each star by the use of rectangular - 
co-ordinates,” whieh is abundantly Ulnstrated in his paper.—'The new volume 
contains, besides other papers, several by Captain Jacob, of the Madras 
Observatory, on the measures of Saturn and Jupiter, &e. 

Tie Mosaic PAVEMENTS and other antiquities discovered at 
Jarthage by the Rev. N. Davis, which have been deposited in the British 
Museum, ave deseribed by Mr. A. W. Franks, the Director of the Society of | 
Antiquartes, in the new volume of the Society's ** Archaologia.” The mosaics, 
containing figures emblomatical of several of the Roman months, of spring, X&e., 
are represented in coloured plates, The paper is one of great interest. 

THe SUN OPHTHALMOSCOPE.—The new number of the 
valuatlg Ophthalmic Hospital Reports, edited by Mr. J. F. Streatfield, contains 
several interesting papers, ilimstrated by colonred plates, among which is a 
notice, by Dr. Macdonald, of New York, of a method of nsing sunlight instead 
of aptifietal Ligsht in the inspection of the eye, a convex mirror being employed 
inslead of a plane or concave ene. “ Sunlight,” he says, ‘is much swperior to 
other moans of ilumination, Its intensity may be inereased to any extent, and 
with it tlio Interior of the eyeball is seen of a more natural eolour and appear- 
anos. By the nse of a convex mirror the ficld of the retina illuminated is 
mach larger than when a concave one is employed.” 

Tie STATISTICAL Soctery’s JourNAL (new number). in 
addition to the nsual valuable miscelaneous tables and the official proceedings 
of the society, contains the Prince Consort's interesting address at the recent 
International Congress ; the remarks of Messrs. Fox and Senior on the Study 
of Statistics; nnd papers by Dr. Jervis on American Taxation, Dr. Michelsen 
on Russian Serfdom, and) Me, Purdey on recent results of English Poor-rates. | 

A New Fivrer voR Cremists has been devised by Professor | 
Malapert, of Poitiers. All experimentors are subject to the annoyance and 
delay ocoasioned by the weak resistance of the paper af the close of the opera- | 
tion of filtering ; the paper frequently being torn by the weight of its charge. | 

’ M. Malapert places in the midst of his filters, in the pntp of the paper, a dise | 
of loth, whieh not only increases the solidity of fhe frail apparatus out gives | 
a very limpid liquor after the first filtration. ‘Che operation is slower than by 
the entinary method, but mach more sure. The new filter has been examined 
and approved by the Society of Pharmacy éf Paris. ‘The members consider 
that the substance of the filter fulfils all the conditions required for the most 
dotioate chemical experiments; it contains no time or iron, and only a trace 
of chlorine — much Yess than in all other papers. 

To Purtry THE Fout AR emanating from the drains of 
Cologne, M. Gronvern proposes the placing over the open gratings shafts con- 
taining pine shavings, some of which are to be saturated with weak sulphuric 
ach! to fix the ammonia; others to be dipped in lime-awater, to retain the acid 
fnmes; and others to be enerusted with a mixtere of lime and oxide of lead, 
te Complete the disinfection, The shavings lose their virtue in eight or ten 
days, when they are to be, let fall into the drains and fresh ones supplied. 

PuystoLogy OF Rerrn.es,—The eminent naturalist M. FE. 
Blanchard has laid before the French Académy of Seiences his researches on 
the saurians Gizants) and ophidians (serpents), with especial reference to their 
peentiarly variable tagumentary systems. He states that his observations and 
experiments show that the scaly coverings of lizards are especially organised 
for the efficacious reception of the action of air. Among them the elegant 
soala# are remarkably solid, in comsoqnence of the osseous particles they con- 
tain, and are formed by several superposed layers provided with minnte canals 
and spaces, Which being filled with air give the animals the silvery appearances 
observed on their coverings. When the animal or even the scales are plunged 
in water, in a time sherter or longer, according 6o the temperatere, the air in 
the soales is expeled and the spaces fillad with water. To prove the perme- 

vabvility of Oese seales, M, Blanchard has employe? coloured liqnids.——The 
chameleons alone among the saurians have a werty skin, which plays an unim- 
portant part in the reoxydation of the blood. ML. Blanchard considers that the 
fowor the position ef the reptile in the onder of animals, the more important 
its integuiments become in the act of respirstion.--The comparative study of 
the blolewteal condition of animals, thus wi, must greatly tend to throw 
ight on many intrivate physiological questions. 

REPRODUCTION OF THE OSTRICH IN EUROPE.—In 1859 two | 
young ostriches were hatched on the estate of Prince Demidoff at San Donato, 
near Florenee, under the care of M. Desmeure. They are now magnificent 
birds, nearly as large as their parents. ‘This summer five more of these 
remarkable birds have been reared. Twelve eggs had been laid by June 5— 
one on each alternate day, Incubation commenced on May 31, and lasted till 
June 26; the female sitting about five hours daily, and the male the remainin 
ineteen hours, On June 2% four birds were hatched, who began to fecd anc 
un about in the park immediately ; a fifth bird appeared on the 24th, and a 

sixth (a weakly one) was released on the 26th, and lived but a few days. The 
male remained sitting, while the little ones followed the mother resting at 
night under her wings. In consequence of a storm the remainder of the eggs 
were removed, and consequently forsaken. M. Desmeure considers that ina 
short time ostriches may be ascasily reared in Europe as ordinary poultry, and 
states that the parent birds have become much tamer than formerly. Fuller 
details will be found in Prince Demidoff’s letter to M. St. Hilaire, which was 
read at a recent meeting of the French Academy, and which is printed in 
their Comptes Rendus. 

TH GAs-restaR (Gas-Priifer) is the name given by Professor 
frdrann to the apparatus invented by him for the examination of the Sas 
employed in lighting. It is described and figured in the new number of his 
Journal fir Praktische Chémie. The high charaeter of the inventor will 
secure for his apparatus the attention of those interested in the matter. In the 
sarne number will be found a paper by Dr. G. Wunder containing analyses of 
the gas employed in lighting Chemnitz, in Saxony, the attention of these 
chemists having been directed to the subject in conseqnence of the general 
dissatisfaction with the quality of the gas employed. 

HELLARD'S REAPING-MACHINE, 
Cutting the corn when it is ripe is one of the most important 
operations of harvest. It requires many hands to accomplish it in 
proper time, so that the corn which is ready for the sickle may not be 
too ripe and shed, nor the fair weather be allowed to pass before the 
corn is secured, ‘The labourers who are employed all the 
ordinary purposes of husbandry seldom suffice for the harvest, especially 
on extensive farms, and recourse is usually had to the assistance of 
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the Phytotype or Archetype of the Flowering Division of the 

Philosophical Societu of Liverpool.” 

How Focs Arg Propuced, —If into aglass globe filled with air, 
and having the sides moistened with water (says Dr. Mellon), we simultaneous] 
introduce one or two grammes of liqnid ammonia, and fifteen or twenty drops 

a dense clond formed, which 
This cannot be explained by any 

of sulphide of carbon, we see, after some time, 
fills the globe, and lasts for several hours, 

GOETHE'S THEORY OF MORPHOLOGY is ingeniously described 
and illustrated by a series of plates in a paper by Dr. Birkbeck Nevins “ On 

\ rty \ ; Vegetable 
Kingdom” inserted in the new number of the Proceedings of the Literary and 

’ 
y 

direct action of the ammonia and sulphide, either on each other or on the 
water; and therefore the doctor concludes that the phenomenon known under 
the name of fog may be manifested in a moist atmosphere whenever substances 
come together therein indifferent to each other and to water. Tt is only 
necessary that they be changed at the expense of thé air and water into new 
substances, each one, no doubt, endowed with a special optical property ; and 
perhaps meteorology may draw from this fact some explanation to perfect the 
physical theory of certain fogs and clouds, 

A PERMANENT PeN.—Messrs, Moseley and Son, of London 
have perfected a pen that will write for twelve hours, or more, 

_ without an application to the 
pocket pencilcase, 

continuously. 
g 

° 

inkstand. and yet take up no more space than & 
The material employed hy them, and found to-answer 

aimirably, is vulcanised indiarubber—one not acted on in any way by the ink 
contained in the reservoir, 
simple, and quite unlike all other fountain-pens, 
similar purposes the inyention is one of more than 

Ae 0. 
ordinary usefulness, 

a 

nee: ee ee tn 

in a somewhat sloping direction back over the knives, 

The whole is most ingeniously arranged, but 
for shorthand-writing and 

- 
eer eee 

2ndly, 
Mechanical rollers behind the knives for taking the corn from the 
creepers as cnt, and bringing it on the travelling canvas platform, 
and preventing the knives from cutting off short ears, 3drdly,; The 
bringing the corn in the travelling canvas to the side of the machine, 
thus preventing the possibility of corn, however ripe, being shaken 

as (or any other suitable 
material) being free from any shaking motion. 4thly, The employing 
two knives, the under one being stationary and the top one movable, mechanics and artisans from the neighbouring towns and villages, or | thus always securing the cutting the stubble in hilly land, however labourers are induced by good ‘ wages tocome from adistance. As eee : 

& 
the harvest is later in those parts 
of every country which have a 
more northern situation, or are 
higher above the level of the sea, 
bands of reapers from these places 
assist in the harvest of those tracts 
whose produce is earlier; and the 
husbandmen of the latter places, 
when their harvest is gathered, can 
return the compliment. To en- 
courage the annual returns of such 
desirable assistants every induce- 
ment is offered them, not only by 
wages, but also by food and drink, 
and amusements after the toil of 
the day, Thus, the time of harvest 
is a time of rejoicing both to the 
labourers and the masters, 

There have been — several 
attempts to introduce machinery 
for reaping corn. Most of the 
inventions were ingenious and 
promised well, but few when put 
to the test answered the expecta- 
tions formed. In some cases, 
however, the inyentors have 
struggled on and achieved success, 
Among the successful few may be 
ranked Mr. Robert Hellard, of 
aunton, ‘The main principle of 

Mr, fieHard’s machine is much the 
same as that of other reapers ; 
but the improvements he has 
patented are very conspicuous, 
These consist of arrangements by 
which laid corn is raised, in what- 
ever direction it may have fallen, 
and the cut corn is delivered in a 
manner extremely convenient for binding, "At the same time he claims 
for it a superiority on account of lightness of draught, and the fact ! 
that, although capable of cutting a breadth only six inches less than | 
any other machines, it can be got through any gateway, while in | 
the cases of some others a post has to be removed or part of a | 
hedge taken down in order to effect admission to the field, This 
machine has been tested under diverse cireumstances with marked 
success, Some of the most prominent of its many excellent 
qualities are thus set forth by its inventor and manifacturer :— 
Ist, The creepers, or feathered knife-guards, that raise lodged or down- 
laid corn, the points of which are in advance of the knife, and extend 

RICKETT’S ROAD LOCOMOTIVE, 
Somt time back we gave an illustration of a steam-carriage which 
was driven from Buckingham to Windsor Castle, The accompanying 
Engraving represents a similar one, built for the Earl of Caithness, 
with which his Lordship, accompanied by Lady Caithness, the Rev, W. 
Ross, and Mr. Rickett, “travelled north ;" in fact, 
drove from Inverness to Barrogell Castle, a distance 
of 150 miles, virtually in two days, and which is con- 
sidered the boldest and most difficult enterprise re- 
corded in the annals of road locomotion. A trial trip 
to a point 150 miles ahead, with a full load of 
passengers and luggage, over some of the most 
mountainous districts of Scotland, the party for the 
most part unacquainted with the route, and the 
supplies of coal and water therefore wnicertain ; some-_ 
times ascending hills of 1 in 7, towering up toa 
splendid sea view, and again descending the winding 
roads cut in the hill sides, crossing the mountain 
gorges at an acute angle by a narrow bridge, down 
an unprotected gallery of rocks, without the slightest 
accident or danger, certainly speaks well for the noble 
conductor, and also for the inventor of the carriage. 
It is stated that his Lordship travelled the first stage 
from Inverness to Beauly, a distance of fourteen 
miles, in one hour and twenty minutes, notwith 
standing frequent stoppages for horses and once for 
water, After leaving Beauly, on those parts of the 
road where some distance forward could be seen, he 
attained a speed of eighteen miles an hour, and 
could have kept it up for any distance with ease and 
safety. He drove up the hills without difficulty, 
and, proceeding down the yery steep declivity near where the road 
joins the other from Tain, the control his Lordship had over it was 
most satisfactory, and enabled him to descend at any rate he pleased 
with perfect case and safety. 

On the Monday he started from Golspie at an early hour, numbers 
assembling to see if it would manage the steep ascent leading to 
Dunrobin Castle ; but, as usual, drove right on, amidst hearty cheers, 
to the town of Helmsdale, about fifteen miles, when, on stopping for 
water, egress from the carriage was almost impossible from the crowd 
of Gaelic fishermen assembled. The town is situated at the foot of 
“the Ord of Caithness,” a noted mountain, which, it was said, would 
bring the engine toa stand if anything could: and oft was the cry 
repeated, “Yell ne’er get o'er the Ord!” The ascent commences 
immediately on leaving the town with an incline of about 1 in 10, 
and continues for five miles frequently 1 in 7. Winding up the 
precipitous route, the deep, strong, but regular beat of the engine told 
that, though severely taxed, the task was not more than it could 
manage, and without once stopping or flagging it reached the summit, 
when the party congratulated themselves on the crisis of the enterprise 
being so satisfactorily passed, For the descent into Berridale Glen his 

EEE Lordship had provided a special drag. but found that, with the party | 
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HELLARD’S PATENT VICTORIA SIDE-DELIVERY REAPING AND MOWING MACHINE, 

slow the horses or machine might travel. Sthly, Its entire width is 
only eight feet nine inches, enabling it to pass through ordinary nine- 
feet field gates, and yet its cutting apparatus is five feet. 6thly, It is 
self-acting, only requiring a man or lad to drive the two horses, and 
will cut from one acre to one acre and a half of corn or grass per hour, 
7thly, The corn is thrown out in regular swathes, with the reeds lying 

_in one uniform direction, thereby doing away with the possibility of 
waste when dividing it into sheayes, 8thly, It is made very portable 
and yet very strong, and can be drawn on its own wheels from field to 
field, or might easily be put in a common four-wheel dray or drag, and 
thus drawn any distance without risk of breakage, 

walking down, the ordinary screw-breaks were quite sufficient to keep 
it perfectly under control. 

At Wick, about seventeen miles from his Lordship’s residence, the 
arrival of the carriage was anxiously expected. Horsemen went out 
to meet it, and the firing of cannon announced its approach. The 
whole town appeared to have turned out, for the streets were thronged 

LOCOMOTIVE STEAM-CARRIAGE FOR COMMON ROADS, BUILT FOR THE 
; BARL OF CAITHNESS. 2 

and, bemg situated a hundred miles andmore from any railway, steant 
on the highroads was hailed with enthusiam. «His Lordship stopped 
more than an hour for refreshment, and then, amid the gathering 
shades of night, drove on to Barrogell : but the nights are not dark in 
that treeless county, and his Lordship drove as merrily as by daylight 
to within a few miles of John o’ Groat’s, , 

These carriages are designed by Mr, Rickett to carry three persons 
at ten miles per hour on any ordinary roads, which they appear satis< 
factorily to accomplish. They require about the same space as a horse 
and chaise, carry sufficient water for ten to fifteen miles, and coal for 
thirty miles, weigh thirty cwt., and are well mounted on springs, the 
only noise being that of the escaping steam. which can be stopped 
instantly when horses appear frightened. The arrangement is such 
that the carriage and the engine are distinct, and the duties pertaining 
to each divided. The fireman keeps up the supply of power by attention 
to the fire and water, while the person occupying the front right-hand 
seat turns it on as he thinks proper, having absolute control in the use 
of the steam and in guiding the carriage. 

In the Engraving the splashers are taken off the wheels in order to 
= the machinery, which when working is protected from dust and 
irt, 
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THE VOLUNTEER REVIEW AT KNOWSLEY PARK. 

ON Saturday, the Ist inst., there was a grand demonstration of the 
Lancashire and Cheshire Volunteer Corps at Knowsley Park, near 
Liverpool, the seat of the Earl of Derby. ‘There was “ Royal 
weather ” for the occasion, and the review passed off in a manner that 
left little, if anything, to desire. The riflemen mustered abont 12,000 
strong, and there were, according to some accounts, nearly a quarter of 
a million spectators. We give, from the Times, a detailed account of 
the proceedings on the 1st inst. at Knowsley Park, in connection with 
the three Engravings, from drawings by our Special Artists, of the 
review contained in the present Number, which will, we trust, form a 
suitable memorial of this magnificent féte :— 

THE VOLUNTEER MOVEMENT, 

Saturday, the Ist inst., was quite a festal day in Laineashire, Thronghout 
its wide extent there were unusual stir and bustle and the pleasant sense of 
holiday enjoyment. Such exeitement as Loridon knows on the morning of a Derby 
Day reigned in Liverpool, and Manchester, and Preston, and all the country 
round. The occasion was one of those military displays which, ever since her 
Maiesty reviewel the volunteers in the metropolis, have, on a scale more or 
less extensive, become so frequent throughout the land, contributing in their 
progress to lend to a great movement an éelat which during the days of its 
infancy—the days of drill and patient and unostentatious labour—it naturally 
lacked. Originating in the independent impulses of a free people, the 
volunteer force possessed. within itself the germs of a robust vitality. It 
required not to be nursed and dandled into healthy and energetic life. It 
encountered difficulties at the outset of its still brief existence bnt to over- 
eome them; and it now finds itself, after some sixteen or eighteen months of 
earnest work, the subject of Royal approbation, the theme of lordly compli- 
ment, and the object of national hope. It is a proud position to have won in 
so shorta time. It is a position which by the simple aid of unbought effort 
it would seem dificult, to maintain. Yet each successive Aisplay of the 
efiiciency of the volunteer force but serves to furnish fresh materials for 
praise, and fresh grounds for exultation that it continues to do its work so 
bravely and so well. Day by day in our columns note is made of the principal 
features in its progress. Nor is it an easy task to keep pace with the rapidity 
of its march. To-day it is the record of a review in the capital, graced by 
the presence of the Sovereign; to-morrow, of half-a-dozen others, held in 
various parts of the provinces, we will not say under the patronage, but with 
the free and hearty co-operation of the influential and the noble. Sham fights, 
inspections, and rifle meetings follow one another in quick and varied suces- 
sion. The movement, in short, is in its “hot youth,” and is revelling in all 
the exuberance of its newly-awakened energies, and all the fulness of its un- 
questioned popularity. There is about it, however, an earnest spirit which 
forbids one to entertain the apprehension that, this period of its career being 
over, it will dwindle into comparative inactivity, or assume a less imposing 
aspect. Nor can events like that which took place in Knowsley Park on 
Saturday fail to do much to keep such a spirit alive. 

PREPARATIONS FOR THE REVIEW. 

To all the yolunteers of Lancashire—and they are some 14,900 strong —the 
Harl of Derby, more than six weeks since, caused intimation to be given that 
the grounds of Knowsley should on that day be placed at their disposal for the 
purposes of a review. Before a fortnight had elapsed some 10,009 volunteers 
had signified their acceptance of the noble Earl's invitation. Active prepara- 
tions were at once set on foot to render the occasion worthy both of those who 
were to take the chief part in its proceedings, and of him who was its prime 
and liberal promoter. ‘The volunteers of Lancashire, on, their part, drilled 
with assiduous energy. Each corps hoped by means of increased exertion to 
win for itself at least some small portion of the honours of the day, or, at all 

~ events, to do its work in snch a manner as to reflect no discredit on the county 
to which it belonged. A ‘* Knowsley Review Committee” was formed to settle 
the requisite military details. Tts secretary, Captain Melly, laboured with the 
most indefatigable zeal to secure that object. His exertions were ably 
seconded by Major Harman, Assistant Inspector of Volunteers. ‘The result 
was the rapid and satisfactory completion of the necessary arrangements. No 
longer than a week or ten days back, however, one important thing yet re- 
mained to be done. The ground for the review had not yet been selected—the 
eye of more than one person conversant with military matters had, indeed, 
been fixed by anticipation on a particular spot in Knowsley Park as that which 
was the most eligible for the purpose; but it was not until the close of the 
week preceding the review that this ground was, with the entire approval of 
General Sir G. Wetherall, Commander-in-Chief, and Colonel Wilbraham, Adin- 
tant-General, of the district, Major Harman, Captain Melly, and Captain H. 
tlornby, of the Liverpool Artillery, definitively chosen. 

KNOWSLEY HALL AND PARK. 

Knowsley Hall stands on an elevated space in one of the finest of the olf 
domains of England. It is avast pile of building, constructed for the mos 
part of red stone, and is at once massive andirregular. Its most ancien 
portions are said to have been erected so far back as the days of Henry VII+ 
Additions have at various times since been made to it—-in themselves of the 
dimensions of noble mansions. It is imposing because of its great extent, 
rather than by reason of symmetry of architectural design. The surrounding 
grounds are beautiful and extensive. Lawn and woodland alternate in 
picturesque variety. Frequent chumps of majestic trees crown thesammits of 
yerdant slopes. Broad avenues open up charming views. Of these views none 
is fairer than that which presents itself from thefront of the Hall, which 
stands facing the west, a solid, oblong, and stately mass. A wide expanse of 
park-land, comparatively free from trees, stretches from Knowsley in this 
direction. The prospect which it reveals is that of beautiful grounds, gently 
gliding to a lower level, becoming in the distance more thickly wooded, then 
rising again to a higher degree of elevation, and forming small eminencés 
topped at intervals by the spire of a church, or some public building con- 
spicuous by its size and position. Of course, when such objects become 
visible, the eye must have wandered beyond the limits of Knowsley; but then 
it cannot fix the line by which those limits are bounded, so like one great park 
is the whole scene on which it gazes,and which extends to Ormskirk and 
Formby, and so on towards St. George’s Channel. 

ARRANGEMENTS UN THE PARK. 

THE ILLUSTRATED LONDON NEWS 
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' a general holiday. Saturday morning at length dawned, to dispel for the | 

: 

| 
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{t is on this western side of the Hall, and at a distance from it of somewhat ~ 
tess than a quarter of a mile, that the spot is situate of which choice was 
made for the review. At that distance a flat space of ground, about one 
hundred and twenty yards wide, runs from east to west for about a mile. On 
its north side it is bounded by a ridge of more elevated land, into which it 
gradually slopes, and whose summit is crowned by a plateau of pretty con- 
siderable extent. Its south side is defined by a similar but a still more 
gradual elevation. Along the centre of this level strip of ground, up the east 
and west slopes of its northern boundary, and so on along its north side, so as 

_to embrace the plateau which has just been mentioned, a neatly-constructed 
white wire fence was run. The ground thus hemmed in fornied a sort of 
irregular oval, elevated at its northern, depressed to a level space about sixty 
feet wide at its southern side, and blending so gradually together elevation and 
depression at its western extremity as to enable the troops engaged in the 
review to make without inconvenience that end their wheeling-point as they 
marched past the reviewing officer. 
side were erected two stands, the one being set apart for the Harl and Countess 
of Derby and their gucsts; the other devoted to the nse of Captain Hornby, 
R.N., upon whom, under the general direction of the noble owner of Knowsley 
himself, the burden of making the necessary preparations for the review in all 
non-military respects principally rested. Behind those stands the remaining 
space of level ground, sixty feet wide, was wired off for pedestrians, the 
elevated ground inmediately outside being set apart for carriages and vehicles 
of every description. The space all round the inner fence was, as far as the 
nature of the ground and the necessity of affording due facility of entrance 
to the oval to volunteers would permit, similarly apportioned, except that 
a single line of seats, running from Lord Derby's stand close by the fence, 
for upwards of one-third of its extent, was appropriated exclusively to ladies. 

? TUE COMMISSARIAT DEPARTMENT, 
Thus much was well and expeditiously done. It was, however, the least 

part of the work which Captain Hornby had undertaken to accomplish. Lord 
Derby had invited 14,090 yolunteers to assemble in his magnificent park, but 
he had done more. He had, in the spirit of a prineely hospitality, determined 
to provide refreshments for them. Now, to furnish so large a number with 
ever. a single meal is, as Sir R. Airey and, indeed, every military man of expe- 
rience well knows, no mean achievement, It is a great work, and not to be 
lightly undertaken. It was, however, undertaken by Lord Derby, and with 
the able and energetic assistance of Captain Hornby triumphantly excented. 
At the rear of the plateau on which it was arranged the yolunteers on their 
wwrival on the ground should forin line ten large tents were erected. Each of 
those tents was divided into two compartments, and in each of those compart- 
ments were provided refreshments for the number of men in a battalion, of 
which twenty went to compose the five brigades which were expected to take 
part in the review. The number of each brigade as well as of the several bat- 
talions was attached to the tents and divisions of tents thus allotted to the 
purposes of the commissariat, so that with the most ordinary care all confitsion 
in serving out the refreshments could be avoided. In those tents 11,340 meat 
pies were by eleven o'clock on Saturday morning safely lodged. Tio wash them 
down fifty-nine hogsheads of beer, brewed at the Hall—but wisely kept below the 
strength of the famous ‘“ Knowsley ale,” so well known in Lancashire for its 
fine flavour and highly-levelling qnalities—were placed under canvas. Nor 
were the wants of the general pubtice—for Lord Derby had bidden all comers to 
be present at that which he had done all in his power to make a brilliant spec- 
tacle—forgotten. Tents for their accommodation were erected at convenient 
points throughout the park, and refreshmnnts supplied to them by Mr. 
Morrish, of Liverpool, at a reasonable and regulated rate of charge, Water- 
bntts for their use were also placed at intervals along the gronnd. To bring 
abont these results, and to go through much more, to which it is needless fur- 
ther to advert, was what Captain Hornby had in a brief space of time to effect, 
and no work could be done in a manner more courteous or with a success more 
complete. 

THE GATHERING OF THE SPECTATORS. 

Devout were the expectations as the day fixed for the review approached in 
the busy centres of industry in Lancashire that unpropitious weather might 
not come to mar the enjoyment of that which it had been arranged should be 

—_ 

At the centre of the ground on the south. 

moment all doubts and fears upon the subject. 
cloudless. Alas! his brilliant promise was but of brief duration. 
o'clock his beams were entirely shorn ef their splendowr. The sky became 
overcast : rain fell in a smart shower, Again for a few minutes came sim- 

The sun rose bright and | 
By ten 

shine and hope ; then, again, a slight sprinkling of rain, partially to obscure | 
the one and damp the other. Nothing daunted, Liverpool and Manchester, 
andthe other towns of Lancashire, began to pour forth their thousands. 
Conveyances of all sorts—save carts, to which alone admission was Qenied | 
within the precincts of Knowsley—were put into active requisition. 
were abroad the signs of unusnal stir, and bustle, and life. The small and 
usually quiet stations in the vicinity of Knowsley were deluged by a constant 
influx of people. With admirable forethought a plan of the park, drawn up 

There | 

by authority, embodying the chief features in the review-ground, and pointing | 
out the positions to be taken up by the volunteers, as well as by the public at 
large, was published by Messrs, Benson and Mallett, and exposed for sale in 
all directions. To avoid confusion, too, written instrnetions were printed on 
the back of this plan, setting forth the particular entrances to the park by 
which, as it might be, carriages or volunteers only, or pedestrians generally, 
were to obtain admission. {[¢ was still very early in the day when crowds of 
visitors from Liverpool, and Manchester, and Bolton, and hundreds of places 
beside, found themselves passing into the park by the Liverpool, Huyton, 
Ormskirk, and Croxteth gateways, from the summit of each of which floated 
a large flag bearing the inscription, * Welcome, Volunteers!” and haying 
streaming by its side another emblazoned with the arms of the house of 
Stanley, with the appropriate Conservative motto, “Sans changer.” By 
twelve o'clock some 6000 or 7090 persons were, after a walk of two or three | 
miles across a fine breezy cowntry, assembled on the review-ground, which, 
with its white lines of posts and fences, looked picturesque in the extreme. 
The weather by this time had assumed a more favourable aspect. Clouds 
still occupied the sky, but then there were frequent gleams of sunshine—all 
the more welcome because of the contrast with the previous sombre aspect of 
the heavens. After half-past twelve no rain fell, while the few showers of the 
morning but served to lend the turf a livelier hue and to tint the fohage with 
a brighter green. 

About half-past two the first regiments of volunteers came upon the scene, 
and took up their position on the plateau on the north side of the ground. 
From that time forward the various corps, some of which were loudly cheered 
in their progress through the crowd, arrived in rapid succession, with their 
respective bands playing before then. Meanwhile, the space allotted to pedes- 
trians on the south side of the inclosure had become filled with one dense mass 
of human beings, yet the various avenues of approach still continued to con- 
tribute their thousands to the already vast assemblage. Splendid equipages, 
freighted with the rank, beauty, and fashion of Lancashire, lined, as with a 
fringe of many colours, the crest of the rising ground set apart for their 
accommodation, 

ARRIVAL ON THE GROUND OF LORD DERBY'’s CORTEGE, MARSHALLING 
OF THE VOLUNTEERS, 

Tt was near five o'clock. The troops, amonnting to about 11,090 strong, 
were all assembled, and had taken up their position in a line, the front of 
which extended along the verge of the high ground on which they formed. The 
day had become fine as the most ardent wisher of suecess to the review as a 
spectacle could desire. There was about the landscape itself a glow and a 
warmth of colouring which were quite refreshing. All now was expectation 
for the commencement #f the proceedings which had drawn such numbers 
numbers variously computed at from 140,000 to 200,000 people—tegether. On 
a sudden the union jack was hoisted on the flagstai! at Knowsley. It was the 
signal that Sir G. Wetherall and his Staff were quitting the Hall, of the splen- 
did hospitality of the noble owner of which they had, in common with an im- 
mense number of other guests, been partaking. A salute from the guns of the 
Liverpool Artillery, who were stationed on the extreme left of the line of 
volunteers, heralded the nearer approach of the brilliant cavaleade. On it 
came, at a quick pace, headed by Sir G. Wetherall, with whom, mounted on a 
powerful horse, rode the Harl of Derby himself. The Earl of Sefton, Lord 
Lientenant of the county, Colonel Wilbraham, Lieutenant-Colonel Lightfoot, 
Lieutenant-Colonel P. W. M. Talbot, and the other members of the Staff im- 
mediately followed. The rear was brought up by two open carriages with ont- 
riders, in the first of which were seated the Countess of Derby and Lady 
Emma Stanley. Rapidly the cortége entered the grownd at the south-eastern 
side and proceeded around the inclosure, the Earl of Derby being greeted with 
repeated cheers and the waving of hats and handkerchiefs by the assembled 
spectators as he passed wpon his way, and SirG. Wetherall being received with 
a general salute as he rode by the troops in line. 

This ceremony being over, the Countess of Derby and Lady Emma Stanley 
drove up to their stand on the south side of the inclosure, where they took 
their seats in front of a brilliant circle. Between this stand and Captain 
Hornby’s was the Staff flag, by which Sir G. Wetherall took up his post. The 
Earl of Derby still continued, as he did throughout the day, to ride about the 
ground on horseback. ‘The volunteers up to this moment maintained their 
original position, which they had taken up in the following order :—On the 
extreme right were placed the Laneashire Hussars and the Lancashire 
Mounted Rifle Volunteers, commanded by Sir R. 'T. Gerard, the men of the 
latter corps brilliant in scarlet uniforms, but numbering only thirteen or 
fourteen strong ; next the cavalry; and on their left were posted the Liverpool 
Artillery, consisting of four battalions 2068 strong. ‘They took up their 
ground in lines of contiguous columns of battalions at intervals of six paces. 
Then came the Ist, 2nd, rd, and 4th Laneashire Rifle Brigades, each being 

_ drawn up in the same order as the urtillery, nnd the lastanentioned beoiowle 
occupying the extreme left of the line. 

’ ; THE MARCHING PAST. 
The position of the several brigades, commencing with the artillery, was 

indicated by means of blue, white, yellow, red and white, and green flags. Sir 
G. Wetherall having rode by the troops in this order, and having returned to 
the Staff flag, as before mentioned, the cavalry at the extreme west end of the 
ground and the extreme right of the line formed column and the movement of 
marching past the reviewing General commenced, the evolutions of formin 
mass of close columns of brigades, and opening out to wheeling distance by 
battalions in succession from the front, having in due course before they 
began to march been executed by the artillery and infantry brigades, 
The sight which now presented itself was a fine one. On from the wheeling- 
point at the west end of the ground, along the level space already indicated, 
came in advance some of the new artillery guns, followed by the Lancashire 
Hussars, about 200 strong, known as Sir R. Gerard’s corps, in their gorgeous 
uniforms, mounted on high-spirited horses, and looking every inch a match 
for any equal number of cavalry of the line. They were loudly cheered as they 
passed. Immediately behind were the small detachment of the Ist Lancashire 
Mounted Rifles. Next in order came the Lancashire Artillery, of which the 
ist battalion was under the command of Lientenant-Colonel W. Brown, 
formerly member for South Lancashire, who was warmly greeted as he rode at 
the head of his troops. Nothing could, on the whole, be more admirable than 
the steady prreision of movement displayed by the artillery, more especially on 
the part of the Ist and 4th Liverpool Corps, under the command respectively of 
Lieutenant-Colonel W. Brown and Major Walter, and the 11th Liverpool and 
15th Garston, under the command of Lientenant-Colonel M‘Iver. ‘To the 
artillery succeeded the Ist Lancashire Rifle Brigade, followed by the second 
brigade, composed chiefly of Manchester corps, which marched in a style that 
-fully entitled them to share with the artillery the honours of the day, and who 
were again and again cheered. Then came the 3rd and 4th brigades, and 
these having marched past and proceeded to form with the other brigades in 
the original position on the summit of the platean, the Laneashire Hussars, 
who had halted at the east end of the ground, rede back at full gallop by the 
reviewing General to their post on the right of the line. They were, as they 
did so, repeatedly cheered. 

THE GENERAL SALUTE. 

The marching past, which had occupied about three-quarters of an honr, 
Was now over, and it only remained for the troops to advance in line for a 
general salute. Slowly they moved down the slope, on the crest of which the 
front rank stood, halting just before they reached the level ground. In this 
position the foremost rank was onttopped by that immediately behind it, 
rank rising above rank like steps of stairs, those which in their original posi- 
tion stood far back on the plateau being now on the verge of the slightly 
elevated ridge in which it terminates. The officers were in front of the line. 
Sir G. Wetherall and his Staff, accompanied by Lord Derby, rode towards it. 
At this moment the sun, which had for a short time been concealed behind a 
eloud, lighted up the whole park with a sudden glory. The swords of the 
officers as they were pointed downwards in salute reflected back his tempered 
splendour. The dark masses of the volunteers—for the uniforms of those 
present were for the most part of a sombre colour—reflected it too. Exclama- 
tions of admiration of-the pictnresqne beauty of the scene might be heard en 
all sides. 

SIR G. WETHERALL’S ADDRESS TO THE VOLUNTEERS. 

While yet its brightness continued unimpaired Sir G. Wetherall addressed 
the assembled troops in the following words :— 
“Commanding Officers and Gentlemen,—1 wish to express to you the entire 

satisfaction I have received—a satisfaction which I am sure everybody else 
who has witnessed it has experienced—from this beautiful display. It must 
serve, I feel assured, to impress everybody with the conviction of the extra- 
ordinary progress which the regiments before me have made in those field 
movements which are necessary in actnal war. I have had many opportu- 
nities of witnessing the great advance made by rifle volunteers, and nothing 
can, in my opinion, well exceed the rapidity of that advance. It keeps pace 
with the hopes of every Englishman, and I cannot express to you what happi- 
ness it gives me to be associated with these your patriotic gatherings. I do 
not think I can more appropriately bring to a close the few remarks which I 
have deemed it to be my duty on this o¢casion to make than by suggesting 
that we should express our thanks after the good old Engish fashion for the 
princely hospitality of our noble host, to whose kindness we are indebted for 
this splendid spectacle.” 

A cheer, loud, prolonged, and ringing, burst forth along the whole of the 
line of volunteers, who up to that moment maintained a grave silence. It 
was echoed and re-echoed, and, as a spontancous demonstration of apprecia- 
tion of his liberality and many high qualities, it could bardly fail to have been 
gratifying to the noble Lerd who was its object. Lord Derby acknowledged 
the compliment paid him by two or three times taldng off his hat. 

CONCLUSION.—THE COMMISSARIAT DEPARTMENT STANDS TIE TEST. 

It was now seven o'clock, and over 11,999 men, including 250 of the police 
force, by whom the ground was kept, liad yet to be provided with refreshments. 
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So admirable were the arrangements made for the ecea ion, however, that th 
too, Was soon accomplished. The volunteers niade for the ground immmrtiatel 
in front of the tents which had been erected in the rear of their position, Th 
officer in command of a battalion dispatched, in aceordance with the pri 
regulations, an officer under him to take charge of the tent specially designa: 
as containing the provisions set apart for his battalion. He also directed t 
Captain of each company to send one non-commissioned officer with four me to bring from the tent to a partierlar spot one basket containing refreshmen 
for sixty men, one beercan containing three gallons of ale, and ten half-pin' drinking-cnps. With the proper distribution of the refreshments Whieh con sisted of a meat pie and a piut of ale for each volunteer—the Captains of th several companies were charged. The provisions having been procured fro 
the tents, the Yoltmteers piled erms, and took to the work of demolition lik men. By thetime it was over the shades of evening were fast closing roun 
the pleasant glades and wooiands af Knowsley. The near approach of nigh 
warned the several corps that it was time to be again in motion, and the 
accordingly, with as littl delay as possible, set ont for their respecti 
destinations by appoiniet! routes. ‘The general public commenced leaving the park in a continued stream as soon as the review had ended. : 

The review at Knowsley ranks for splendour and magnitude only below th two similar displays which have been held under Royal auspices. 
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OFFICIAL LIST OF THE POROR ON THE GROUND, 
REVIEWING OFFICER GENERAL. STR GRORGE WETHERALL, K.0.B., KR. 

YEOMANRY CAVALRY AND MOUNTED RIPE VOLUNTEERS, 
Sir R. 'T. Gerard, Bart., commanding —the Lancashire Hussars and the Ist 

Lancashire Mounted Ritle Volunteers. Approximate st rength, 200. 

ARTILLERY BRIGADE, 

Lieutenant-Colonel James Bourne, 4th I.A.V., 
Chambres, Major of Brigade. Captain Henry UU. 
Liverpool. Approximate strength, 42. 
pool. Approximate strength, 21. 

commanding; Major 
Hornby, 4th Lancashire, 

Captain Clay, Sth Lancashire, Liver- 
First Batialion, Lieutenant-Colonel Brown— 

Ist Lancashire, Liverpool; 2nd, Crosby ; eh, 7th, Sth, 13th, Mth, and 20th, 
Liverpool. Approximate strength, 583. Second Battalion, Major Jackson— 
Sth Lancashire, Blackburn ; 9th, Liverpool; 10th, Kirkham ; 12th and i7th, 
Liverpool. Approximate strength, 450 Third Battalion, Lieutenant-Colonel 
MIver—1tth Laneashire, Liverpool; 15th, Garston. Approximate strength, 
450. Fourth Battation, Major Welter-4th Laneashire, Liverpool. Approxi- 
mate strength, 485, Total approximate strength, 2068, 

RIFLE VOLUNTEERS, 
First Brigade.—-Colonel Wilbraham, ©.B.. commanding; Captain Eteson 

Major of Brigade. First battalion, Lieutenant-Colonel Boustield Ist, 22nd, 
66th, and 69th Lancashire; first battalion, Liverpool; 88th, Fairfieid, 
Approximate strength, 580. Second battalion, Major Bourne lith, 25th, 
jist, and 63rd Lancashire, Liverpool. — Approximate strength, 496. Third 
battalion, Captain Greenall—9th Lancashire, Warrington ; 13th, Southport ; 
82nd, dist, Glth, and 74th, Liverpool; 54th, Ormskirk; 72nd, Old Swan. 
Approximate strength, 535, Fourth battalion, Liewtenant-Colonel Gladstone— 
jth, 19th, 38th, 42nd, 68th, 71st, and Mth Lancashire; second battalion, 
Liverpool, Approximate strength, 600, Total approximate strength, 2211, 

Second Brigade.—-Colonel Crofton, commanding. Virst battalion, Lleu- 
tenant-Colonei Viscount Grey de Wilton—6th Lancashire, Manchester, 
Approximate strength, 670, Second battalion, Major Cunliffe—s3rd 
Lancashire, Ardwick ; 46th, Salford. Approximate strength, 556, Third 
battalion, Lioutenant-Colonel Hon. Algernon Hgerton—40th Lancashire, 
Manchester. Approximate strength, 460. | Pourth battalion, Lieutenant- 
Colonel Deakin—2sth Lancashire, Manchester, Approximate strength, 581. 
‘Total approximate strength, 2207. 

Third Brigade.—Liewtenant-Colonel Lightfoot, C.B., commanding ; 
tenant Wheatley, sith Regiment, Major of Brigade,  Pirst battalion, 
Lieutenant-Colonel Garible-—4d7th Lancashire, St. Helen's; 48, Prescot. 
Approximate strength, 448, Second battalion, Major the Marquis of 
Hartington—10th Lancashire, Lancaster; 37th, Ulverston, Approximate 
strength, 420, Third battalion, Major Pedder-—ith Lancashire, Rossendale ; 
11th, Preston; 29th, Lytham; 65th, Nossall. Approximate strength, 428, 
Pourth battalion, Captain Eckersley—2ist Lancashire, Wigan ; 26th, Haigh ; 
44th, Longton; 61st, Chorley; 59th, Leyland. Approximate strength, 444, 
Total approximate strength, 1700, 

Lieu- 

Fourth Brigade,—Lientenant-Colonel the Hon, P. W. M, Talbot, com- 
manding ; Captain the Hon. W. H. Herbert, 84th Regiment, Major of 
Brigade, First battalion, Major Gray—27th Laneashire, Bolton ; 49th, 
Newton ; 55th, Leigh ; 60th, Atherton, Approximate strength, 403. Second 
battalion, Major Grahwn—2nd Taneashire, Blackburn; 7th, Accrington ; 
7th, Burnley ; 36th, Acerington ; 62nd, Clitheroe, Approximate st rength, 478, 
Third battalion, Captain Slingsby —8th Lancashire, Bary; 24th, Rochdale ; 
43rd, Fallowtield ; 70th, Droylesden; 7rd, Newton; 81st, Oldham. Apprasxi- 
mite strength, 464, Fourth battalion Captain Lees—23rd Lancashire, 
Ashten-under-Lyne; 46th, Swinton; 67th, Worsley; 76th, Farnworth, 
Approximate strength, 4753, Total approximate strength, 1808, 

THE KARL OF DERBY AND THE KNOWSLEY RuVIRW. 
The Knowsley Review Committee, representing the volunteers of the county, 

have received the following letter from the Barl of Derby :— 
* Knowsley, September 4, 1860, Dear Colonel Bourne,—I cannot allow the 

proceedings connected with the Knowsley review to come to a close without 
beaeedaie Olay to necept for Votrneliy ened ioailer On my part to all Lhemena- 
bers or you mittee, aid to their zealous and efficient secretary, my warmest 
thanks for their anxious and persevering exertions in arranging the multi- 
farious details whieh had to be considered and settled, It is mainly to your 
and their efforts that we are indebted for the cemplete success which I think I 
may venture to say has attended this brilliant county gathering ; bat I am 
suce you will consider yourselves more than repaid for all the trouble you have 
taken if the result shall be,as 1 contideutly believe, not merely the momentary 
gratification of a suggested pageant, but an additional stimnius to the great 
and important national movement which has already added so greatly to the 
military strength of the country. 1 am, yours faithfully, Derpy.—Lientenant- 
Colonel Bourne.” 

‘The committee haye resolved,‘ That this committee congratulate the Barl 
of Derby on the perfect success of the review on Saturday, the Ist inst., and 
beg to thank his Lordship for his courteous hospitality. That the committee 
cannot separate without acknowledging the valuable assistance rendered by 
Captain Hornby, R.N.. to whose judicious arrangements the success of the 
gathering must in a great degree be attributed.” 

THE REFRESHMENTS AT THE KNOWSLEY REVIEW. 

The provisions for the review were supplied by Mr. Morrish, ef the 
Merchants’ Dining-rooms, Tithcharn-street, Liverpool. From the statistics 
of the refreshment department it appears (says the Liverpool Mercury) that 
the pies distributed to the volunteers weighed altogether between five and etx 
tons, and had to be conveyed from Liverpool in-ten carts. The ale, brewed at 
Knowsley, was contained in 24 hogsheads. In making the pies for the 
volunteers, 80001b, of flour, G000Ib. of yeal and ham, 5001b, of butter, and 
2000 eggs, were brought into requisition. ‘The liquors for the general pnblic 
consisted of an unlimited supply of champagne, burgundy, brandy, whisky, 
&c., besides thousands of dozens of bottled ale and porter, and an almost 
fabulous quantity of soda-water, lemonade, and other similar beverages. In 
addition to this liquid store, Mv. Morrish had on the ground 60 barrels of mild 
ale, from the breweries of Mr. Barker, of Huyton, and Mr. Crosby, of West) 
Derby ; also, 50 barrels of Allsopp’s superior bitter beer. For sandwiches there 
were employed 30 hams. 15 rounds of beef, 50 tongues, 10001b. of roast beef, 
20001b, of bread, and 3001b. of butter, There were also consumed about 3 
Melton Mowbray pies from Leicester, 1000 dozen of large veal and ham pies, 
500 dozen of small pies, 500lb, of Cheshire cheese, and quantities too numerous 
to mention of light pastry and spongecakes. ‘l'wenty water-carts, supplied 
by the Liverpool Health Conmittee, afforded to the thirsty multitude a grateful 
and refreshing beverage. 

CRATHIE CHURCH AND HER MAJesty.—Our noble Queen 
attends Crathie Church with laudable and praiseworthy regularity during her 
periodical sojourn at Balmoral. The church ig a neat, anpresuming, un- 
architecturalised place of worship, perched on the summit of a mound imme- 
diately above the road, with « fine outlook among the trees towards the River 
Dee on the south, and the palace beyond. Although its dimensions are small, 
the gallery must have been intended for something considerable. It comes 
forward in five sides of an octagon, within a few yards of the pulpit, thns 
almost enveloping the lower portion of the church. Ib is plainly and neatly 
fitted up, the three Royal pews in front being eushioned in searlet baize. 
Lord Join Russell and family occupy the pew immediately in front of the 
minister; her Majesty that next on the left, along with, on Sabbath last, the 
Prince Consort, the Princess Leiningen, the Princess Alice, the Prince 
Leiningen, and behind them the Duke of Argyll--but none of the youngsters. 
The Abergeldie pew is in front, to the extreme right. Ag little, of loyalty at 
least, can be seen from. the lower regions, the strangers’ department is 
naturally the gallery, which on euch occasions is pretty well filled betimes, 
All bunt the Royal pews also are oecupied, These remain empty until the 
bell is drawing to a close, when a servant lays out a row of books upon the 
desks; and finmediately thereatter up trips her Majesty in unornamented 
plain black dress, followed as above — all taking their seats with much leas ado 
than is nsual by most ladies getting into their church pews on a Sunday. 
Meanwhile the minister maounts the pulpit, and the service proceeds with all 

the usual decorum of a Scotch church. The music, under the superintendence 
of the minister's family. is, at Crathie, superior to what we usually meet 
with in country congregations ; and in the prayers, as well as in the discourse, 
from “ Let your conversation be as hecometh the Gospel of Christ,” there were 
many admirable, suitable, and telling injrnetions, The service, which ig 
intended for a double one, resolves itself into the reading of two portions of 

Scripture anda short sermon. It does not, therefore, extend beyond an hour 
and a half; and, so soon as the ladies are handed round, the Royal phaeton, 
with a pair of white ponies, draws up to the coor, and her Majesty and 

visitors leaye without the slightest Dustle or noise, the gentlemen present, off 
course, tmcovering as abe passes, [i is » quiet and snitable attendance at 

Caledonian Mercury, 

Battlefield Church, near Shrowsbury, is now andergoing com 
plete repair, under the anspices of Mr. Pountuey Suaith, architect. A én. 
siderable eum having bee ibel by the county towaris the restoration 
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